Ty oF RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
M REGULAR MEETING - 6:30 P.M.
RIO TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 18, 2020
6@ CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
et = 675 WILDWOOD AVENUE, RIO DELL

CALIFORNA

WELCOME - By your presence in the City Council Chambers, you are participating in the process of
representative government. Copies of this agenda, staff reports and other material available to the City
Council are available at the City Clerk’s office in City Hall, 675 Wildwood Avenue. Your City Government
welcomes your interest and hopes you will attend and participate in Rio Dell City Council meetings

often.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance

to participate in this meeting, please contact the Office of the City Clerk at (707) 764-3532.
Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to
assure accessibility to the meeting. Assistance listening devices are now available for the hearing

impaired. Please see the City Clerk for a receiver.

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
D. CEREMONIAL MATTERS

E; PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS

This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on any matter not on this agenda and over
which the Council has jurisdiction. As such, a dialogue with the Council or staff is not intended. Items
requiring Council action not listed on this agenda may be placed on the next regular agenda for
consideration if the Council directs, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rds of the Council that the
item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an urgency nature requiring immediate action.
Please limit comments to a maximum of 3 minutes.

F. CONSENT CALENDAR

The Consent Calendar adopting the printed recommended Council action will be enacted with one
vote. The Mayor will first ask the staff, the public, and the Councilmembers if there is anyone who
wishes to address any matter on the Consent Calendar. The matters removed from the Consent
Calendar will be considered individually following action on the remaining consent calendar items.

1) 2020/0218.01 - Approve Minutes of the February 4, 2020 Regular
Meeting (ACTION) 1



2) 2020/0218.02- Approve Resolution No. 1443-2020 authorizing the
Mayor to sign letters of Support or Opposition to
State and/or Federal Legislation as recommended
by the League of California Cities on an urgency basis
on behalf of the City Council (ACTION) 12

3) 2020/0218.03 - Approve Resolution No. 1444-2020 related to Public
Agency Pilot Solar Program (ACTION) 15

4) 2020/0218.04 - Approve Resolution No. 1445-2020 Amending the FY
2019-2020 Budget related to Streets (ACTION) A9

5) 2020/0218.05 - Receive and File Check Register for January 2020
(ACTION) 42

G. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR
H. REPORTS/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS
1) 2020/0218.06 - City Manager Staff Update (RECEIVE & FILE) 46
I. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS/STUDY SESSIONS
J. SPECIAL CALL ITEMS/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS
1) 2020/0218.07 - Discussion on Draft Policy Governing Discontinuance
of Residential Water Service for Nonpayment
(DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION) 49
2) 2020/0218.08 - Appointment of AdHoc Committee related to the
Development of a Request for Proposal for Utility Rate

Studies (DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION) 56

3) 2020/0218.09 - Authorize staff to Develop and Issue Bid for Maintenance
Paving (DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION) 57

K. ORDINANCES/SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS/PUBLIC HEARINGS



1) 2020/0218.10 - Second Reading (by title only) and Adoption of Ordinance
No. 380-2020 Amending Chapter 13.05 Water Rates
and Regulations and Chapter 13.10 Sewer Rates and
Regulations of the Rio Dell Municipal Code to allow
compliance with Senate Bill 998 (DISCUSSION/
POSSIBLE ACTION) 59

L. COUNCIL REPORTS/COMMUNICATIONS

M. ADJOURNMENT

The next regular City Council meeting is scheduled for
Tuesday, March 3, 2020 at 6:30 p.m.



RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 4, 2020

The regular meeting of the Rio Dell City Council was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor
Garnes.

ROLL CALL: Present: Mayor Garnes, Mayor Pro Tem Woodall, Councilmembers
Johnson and Wilson

Absent: Councilmember Strahan (excused)

Others Present: City Manager Knopp, Chief of Police Conner, Finance
Director Dillingham, Community Development
Director Caldwell, Wastewater Superintendent Taylor,
City Clerk Dunham and City Attorney Gans (closed session

only)

Absent: Water/Roadways Superintendent Jensen
ANNOUNCEMENT OF ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION AS FOLLOWS:

Conference with Legal Counsel — Anticipated Litigation — Initiation and/or exposure to
potential litigation pursuant to Section 54956.9(d)(2) (d)(4): 1 potential case — facts and
circumstances known to adverse party — River's Edge R.V. Park, 620 Davis St., Rio Dell —
Encroachments to Public Right-of-Way

The Council adjourned to Closed Session at 5:00 p.m. with City Manager Knopp, Community
Development Director Caldwell and City Attorney Gans to discuss the above matter.

The Council resumed into open session at 6:30 p.m. Mayor Garnes announced that there
was nothing to report out of closed session.

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS

Nick Angeloff provided an update on Chamber of Commerce activities, noted that the lights
in the trees at Memorial Park would be taken down over the weekend, and reminded
everyone of the candidates’ forum for both District 1 and District 2 candidates. The District 1
event is Thursday, February 6, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. at the Winema Theater in Scotia with
incumbent Rex Bohn and challenger Cliff Berkowitz responding to questions about issues
facing the Humboldt County Board of Supervisors. The District 2 event is Saturday, February
8, 2020 from 1-4 p.m. at the Chamber of Commerce Office with incumbent Estelle Fennell

and four challengers responding to questions about current issues.

Rachel Layman, 160 Ogle Ave. addressed the Council regarding a nuisance abatement
issue at 168 Ogle Ave. She indicated that the mounds of trash and garbage piled up in the

back yard have created a public health hazard as well as a fire hazard. In addition, she now



FEBRUARY 4, 2020 MINUTES
Page 2

has a rodent problem. She commented that she filed complaints with the City and spoke to
the police department on multiple occasions but nothing has been done. In addition, she
contacted the County Health Department and County Code Enforcement and was referred

back to the City.

Susan Nessen, 471 Painter St. addressed the Council in support of Rachel Layman and
noted that she has seen rats the size of cats in her yard. She pointed out that these
particular people need help as well as the neighbors who have to deal with it every day. She
indicated that Rachel would like to sell her home but cannot because of the condition of her

neighbor’s property and the rat problem it has created.

She then complained about the City's sewer rates not being equitable and said that she lives
alone and pays the same sewer rate as her neighbors, particularly the Barisdale’s with 14
people in the house or the Patmore’s with 12 people which she didn't feel was fair. She
added that the councilmembers ran for election to improve the City so they should do their

job and address the inequity.

Jonathan Brodeur, 521 View Ave. addressed the Council once again regarding his water
and sewer bill noting that there are currently only three people in his house and in the past
seven years’ his bill has gone from $113.00 to $250.00 per month.

Robin May, 44 Columbus St. said that she has lived in Rio Dell for seven years and likes the
City and knows that the Council tries hard to make things better but feels the water rates are
too high. She indicated that she pays $116.00 per month for water and sewer, and as a
single woman on social security, it is difficult. She said that she would appreciate anything
the City could do to help residents on fixed incomes and suggested perhaps an early

payment incentive program with a reduced rate.

There being no further public comment, the public presentation portion of the meeting closed.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Mayor Garnes asked if any councilmember, staff or member of the public, would like to
remove any item from the consent calendar for separate discussion.

Motion was made by Johnson/Woodall to approve the consent calendar including approval of

minutes of the January 21, 2020 Regular Meeting, and approval of Resolution No. 1444-2020
amending the FY 2019-2020 Budget to include funding from the State Water Resources

Control Board. Motion carried 4-0.
REPORTS/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS

City Manager/Staff Update




FEBRUARY 4, 2020 MINUTES
Page 3

City Manager Knopp provided highlights of the staff report and added that contractors were
beginning work on a Cal-Trans related project to repair a drainage problem on Eeloa Ave.
The work is not part of the ATP project but in anticipation of the project that will begin over

the course of the next year.

Councilmember Wilson mentioned a rumor he heard regarding plans for a second housing
development in Rio Dell.

City Manager Knopp clarified that there are no additional government subsidized housing
developments underway and mentioned that there is a private 4-plex apartment complex
under construction on First and Berkeley Streets. He commented that the parcel with the
River Bluff Cottages was the last undeveloped parcel in the City zoned for that type of

housing.

Councilmember Wilson advised the public that included in the current FY 2019-2020 budget
are funds for water and wastewater rate studies so the Council would be working toward
addressing concerns regarding the rates.

City Manager Knopp pointed out that rate studies are typically conducted every five years but
they likely would not be completed this fiscal year.

Chief Conner provided an update on the Johnny Renfro homicide case and said that he flew
to North Dakota and interviewed the suspect, Demetrius Coleman who was taken into
custody and his girlfriend, Alma Mendoza who was also later taken into custody. He reported
that arrangements were underway for the Humboldt County Sheriff's Department to fly the
suspect back to Humboldt County over the next couple of days. Sergeant Beauchaine would
be accompanying a Humboldt County correctional deputy to North Dakota to bring Ms.

Mendoza back.
The Council congratulated the Chief and his department for a job well done.

Councilmember Wilson referred to the Community Development Department staff update
regarding the phone meeting with LAFCo staff regarding the Rio Dell Fire District annexation
and asked if it included changing Rio Dell Fire District's boundaries to include the area north

of Rio Dell.

Community Development Director Caldwell indicated that the request was part of the same
application to LAFCo.

City Manager Knopp explained that the Fortuna Fire District would be taking that request to
their board. If they sign off, then it is a clear path forward; if not, then it will probably not
happen. The spirit of the law is certainly within having the boundary changed to include that
area in the Rio Dell Fire District's boundary but ultimately it depend on whether the Fortuna



FEBRUARY 4, 2020 MINUTES
Page 4

Fire District approves the request.

Councilmember Johnson commented that LAFCo meets bi-monthly with the next meeting
scheduled sometime in March.

SPECIAL CALL ITEMS/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

Public Donations Related to River Bluff Cottages Permanent Supportive Housing

City Manager Knopp noted that there was discussion at the last meeting regarding the
development of a charitable donation drive or Go-Fund-Me page to raise funds to purchase
housing supplies for residents of River Bluff Cottages. The consensus of the Council was to
place the item on this agenda for further discussion. He commented that upon a tour of the
facility, it was revealed that the cottages are partially furnished with a loveseat, coffee table,
dinette set and a bed although basic household essentials are needed.

Councilmember Johnson said that he discussed with Mayor Pro Tem Woodall the idea of
individuals creating a Go-Fund-Me page or buying individual household items, which does
not necessarily take a lot of money. He noted that they both supported those ideas.

Councilmember Wilson pointed out the need for coordination to implement those ideas.

Mayor Garnes commented that Councilmember Strahan mentioned churches becoming
involved and brought up the idea of Danco management creating a list of needed items
similar to a gift registry so people are not going out and buying random items that may or may
not be needed. She questioned whether this would be a city, chamber, or community

function.

Councilmember Wilson suggested the list be included in a City Newsletter to let people know
the types of items needed including consumables.

Mayor Pro Tem Woodall suggested it be a function of the City Council without involvement of
City staff and said that she would be willing to be on an ad hoc committee.

Ruth Wilson suggested coordination with the Community Resource Center.

Nick Angeloff, Chamber of Commerce President, offered the Chamber’s assistance in taking
in donations if the City Council is willing to spearhead it and get the list of items needed. He
commented that it is a good cause and is a way of welcoming the residents and wishing them
well. He supported a Go-Fund-Me page along with the committee soliciting donations. He

made a personal commitment to donate $100.00.

Mayor Pro Tem Woodall and Councilmember Johnson were assigned to an ad hoc
committee to work with the Chamber of Commerce and Danco management to solicit



FEBRUARY 4, 2020 MINUTES
Page 5

donations for the residents of the River Bluff Cottages.

Councilmember Johnson said that he was not able to participate in the tour of the facility on
January 27" with other councilmembers and staff however; on one of his days jogging by the
project, he talked to the superintendent and was provided a private tour. He expressed to
him that he wanted the project to be a huge success, not only for Danco and the City, but
also for the residents living there. He pointed out that while the City of Fortuna is known
as “The Friendly City”, Rio Dell is known as “The Warm Hearted City” and he wants the City
to live up to that motto. He suggested finding out what the needs of the tenants are and

striving toward getting them.

Discussion on Measure Z Grant Application
Chief Conner provided a staff report and reviewed previous years’ applications for Measure Z

funding. He noted that the City has been the recipient of Measure Z funds and for the past
few years has funded a part-time clerical support position in the Police Department. The City

requested $33,500 last year and received $23,442.

This year's application includes the request for funding for one new patrol vehicle (truck),
mobile display terminals for the patrol vehicles and continued funding for the part-time clerical

support position.

City Manager Knopp explained that the Measure Z revenue pulled out of the City of Rio Dell
is approximately $143,000 annually so with the $23,442 amount awarded last fiscal year, the
City was a net contributor to Measure Z. What the City has done since inception of Measure
Z is take a modest portion of that tax revenue. The County and the Board of Supervisors
have been very gracious to make sure Rio Dell is getting at least a portion of that tax revenue
back. He pointed out that even if all three of the City’s requests were approved, it would still
result in a net contribution to the County in Measure Z funding.

There we no recommended amendments to the grant application.

ORDINANCES/SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS/PUBLIC HEARINGS

Second Reading (by title only) and adoption of Ordinance No. 378-2019 Establishing a Water
Efficient Landscape Ordinance, Chapter 13.40 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code

Community Development Director Caldwell provided a staff report and noted that the
ordinance was introduced at the meeting of January 7, 2020 and is back before the Council
for its second reading and adoption. As a reminder, he explained that this is a mandated
State requirement regarding efficient use of water resources, specifically pertaining to
landscaping. The State mandated that local jurisdictions either adopt the State’s model
ordinance or adopt a more restrictive model. Staff recommended adopting the State’s model.




FEBRUARY 4, 2020 MINUTES
Page 6

All new development projects are subject to the regulations, including new and rehabilitated
residential, commercial, industrial and institutional projects that require a permit, plan check

or design review.

Mayor Pro Tem Woodall asked for clarification about the Danco project meeting the
requirements.

Community Development Director Caldwell explained that the Danco project did not have any
irrigation proposed since most of their plants are native plants, which do not require watering
once they are established. He commented that he actually submitted the project to the State

indicating this to them.

Councilmember Johnson mentioned that he talked to Danco when he toured the site and they
indicated that they would be hand watering for a couple of years to get the plants established.
After that, there would be enough water table presence to avoid watering.

Mayor Garnes opened the public hearing to receive public comment on the proposed
ordinance.

Jonathan Brodeur asked for further clarification of the ordinance.

Community Development Director Caldwell explained that the idea of the ordinance is to
reduce water usage by requiring efficient landscape design and maintenance. The provisions
apply to new construction landscape projects with landscape areas 5,000 square feet or
greater. He noted that at this point, the provisions do apply to any existing areas in the City.
Should the City have a project that has 5,000 square feet of landscape area, then they would

be required to provide drought tolerant plants.
There being no further public comment, the public hearing closed.

Motion was made by Johnson/Woodall to approve the second reading (by title only) and
adopt Ordinance No. 378-2020 Establishing a Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance, Chapter

13.40 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code. Motion carried 4-0.

Introduction and first reading (by title only) of Ordinance No. 380-2020 Amending Chapter
13.05 Water Rates and Regulations and Chapter 13.10 Sewer Rates and Regulations of the
Rio Dell Municipal Code to allow compliance with Senate Bill 998

City Manager Knopp provided a brief staff report and noted that the Council received an
update on this subject at their last meeting on January 21, 2020. The ordinance is before the
Council for its introduction and first reading. He explained that the ordinance amends
Chapter 13 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code to allow compliance with Senate Bill 998 including
a process for shutting off a customer’s water for non-payment. He reviewed the staff




FEBRUARY 4, 2020 MINUTES
Page 7

recommendation and turned it over to Finance Director Dillingham for further update of the
ordinance.

Finance Director Dillingham explained that the purpose of the update is to remove all of the
language in the existing ordinance related to the shut off of water. She noted that the new
provisions are required to be put into a policy, which would be coming back to the Council in

March, to become effective April 1, 2020 as required.

She reviewed the modifications to the ordinance and noted that some of the changes were to
remove redundant language, provide clarification to the provisions or make minor changes

such as the dates related to billings.

Councilmember Johnson asked if staff anticipated any chaos with regard to the billing of
water and sewer, and whether these provisions would apply to the sewer portion of the bill.

Finance Director Dillingham said that the hope is to mitigate any potential chaos by keeping
the shutoff process similar to the way it is now although setting up payment plans would be
somewhat more challenging. With regard to the sewer portion of bill, staff would be consulting

with the City Attorney to get clarification on that issue.

Councilmember Johnson noted that in the original bill there was mention of the poverty level
with deference given to those customers whose household income level was below 200% of

the federal poverty line.

Finance Director Dillingham reviewed the three requirements to avoid discontinuance of
service as:

1. Certification from a primary care provider that the discontinuance of service will be
life threatening to, or pose a serious threat to the health and safety of, a resident of

the premises where residential service is provided.
2. The customer demonstrates that he/she is financially unable to pay for residential

service within the jurisdictions normal billing cycle.
3. The customer is willing to enter into an amortization agreement or alternative

payment schedule consistent with the written policy.

Councilmember Johnson asked how a customer would establish that they are potentially in
the poverty level zone.

Finance Director Dillingham explained that the customer would need to certify that their
household annual income was less than 200% of the federal poverty level or show that they
are a recipient of CalWORKSs, CalFresh, Medi-Cal, etc. She pointed out that the customer
would still need to keep the current bill paid on time as well as making the required payment



FEBRUARY 4, 2020 MINUTES
Page 8

on the payment plan so unless they have a temporary situation they are trying to overcome,
having a payment plan may be hard to manage.

Councilmember Johnson pointed out that when approximately 48% of the City’s population is
on Medi-Cal, the percentage of qualified customers is high.

City Manager Knopp commented that the program potentially adds to the administrative
burden of managing the system, which creates additional costs to the end user.

Finance Director Dillingham said that there is nothing in the bill that says a jurisdiction cannot
charge a fee for administration of the plan.

Mayor Pro Tem Woodall asked if Accufund would be able to handle the new changes.

Finance Director Dillingham noted that staff created a methodology outside the normal billing
system to accommodate for payment plans, which requires a lot more hands-on. She said
that staff has been in contact with Accufund and that they were not aware of any other cities

implementing new procedures for complying with AB 998.

Councilmember Wilson referred to Section 13.10.160 related to Reconnection Fees and
questioned the reason for eliminating that section.

Finance Director Dilingham explained that the City does not disconnect sewer so the
language was outdated. She referred to Section 13.05.290 which contains Water
Reconnection Fees noting that it was not included because that language did not change.
She agreed to provide a copy of that section of the code in councilmembers mailboxes.

Councilmember Wilson commented that there are some inconsistencies with the water and
sewer rate structure and that it is more complicated than other cities. He said he hopes that
the Council will be able to address any inequities when the rate studies are done. In that

regard, he is looking forward to the rate studies.

Mayor Garnes opened the public hearing to receive public comment on the proposed
ordinance.

Susan Nessen brought up the point that the City can ascertain if a customer falls within the
level of poverty and grant consideration with regard to water but has no provisions for
consideration with regard to sewer charges due to limited usage.

City Manager Knopp explained that the State is ultimately looking to see how many people fit
within the poverty category and the City is required to report those numbers to the State. He
said the problem is that if the City provides a discount for poverty status or age, that
difference has to be made up, by a subsidy from either another fund or other ratepayers end



FEBRUARY 4, 2020 MINUTES
Page 9

up picking up those additional costs to run the program. That funding has not been identified
in the bill and while the State says that it is a priority, they have allocated no money to
actually implement any kind of effective program. What they have actually done is create a

more complex system for the City to administer.
He further explained that under State law, they cannot pass on unfunded mandates but

technically this is not an unfunded mandate because when a rate adjustment is done, the
ratepayers ultimately fund any type of increases in costs. He pointed out that if the City does

not comply with the mandate; it is not eligible for grants.

The resolution and policy were expected to come back to the Council, possibly at the next
meeting or at a March meeting.

City Manager Knopp explained that Susan Nessen’s concerns regarding her sewer bill would
need to be addressed during the rate study and that flat rates or use-base rates are

fundamental discussion points in rate studies.

Councilmember Wilson commented that the State is good at creating legislation and
mandating programs without providing the funding or figuring out how those programs will

work which is part of the constraints the City faces.
Jonathan Brodeur questioned the process for getting a rate study on the agenda.

Mayor Garnes indicated that the rate studies would be agenized in the near future.

There being no further public comment, the public hearing closed.

Motion was made by Johnson/Wilson to approve introduction and first reading (by title only)
of Ordinance No. 380-2020 Amending Chapter 13.05 Water Rates and Regulations and
Chapter 13.10 Sewer Rates and Regulations of the Rio Dell Municipal Code fo allow

compliance with Senate Bill 998. Motion carried 4-0.

COUNCIL REPORTS/COMMUNICATIONS

Councilmember Wilson reported on his attendance at the last Redwood Coast Energy
Authority (RCEA) meeting on January 23" where the focus of the discussion was on clean
energy. Humboldt County must provide clean energy by 2025, which is a significant task.
One of the goals of the State is to take over PG&E and the City Council, along with other
cities sent a letter stating the desire to see PG&E broken up into smaller companies. The

cities and the County are working on ways to address the issue.



FEBRUARY 4, 2020 MINUTES
Page 10

Councilmember Johnson reported that he would be attending the Last Chance Grade
stakeholders meeting the following day in Crescent City. He said that the board would be
presented with the contract for the consultant who would be doing the pre-planning
environmental study. In addition, they would be discussing a portion of the second phase of
the geo-tech studies, which includes the use of helicopters to ferry in equipment to the drill
sites. The environmental document was released and Caltrans submitted their comments on
the document so the board would be getting an update on that process. That phase of the

geo-tech work was expected to take place next summer and fall.

Mayor Pro Tem Woodall reported that she went on a ride-along with Officer Landry and that
she had unreasonable expectations of what our officers do. She noted that it took
approximately three hours to book a suspect on a DUI charge, not counting the time it took to
write the report.  She commented that Officer Laundry was wonderful in explaining things
and the experience was a real revelation. She encouraged other councilmembers to go on

an officer ride-along.

Mayor Garnes reported on her attendance at the League of California Cities Environmental
Quality Policy meeting and that they discussed plans related to climate change and resiliency

and storm drain issues.

She explained that when there is a bill that is going on the floor of the assembly, that needs
immediate attention, cities are given an equal vote to support or oppose the bill. The period
for response is often prior to the next City Council meeting so she would like Council

permission to address those issues when they arise.

City Manager Knopp said the item would need to be agenized for formal action by the
Council.

Councilmember Johnson explained that now is the time for bills to come before the various
levels of the legislature. In a typical year, 2,000 to 2,500 bills are submitted between the

Assembly and the Senate. Of those, approximately ten percent are bills that affect City
government.

Mayor Garnes mentioned that last year Senator Wiener tried to get a bill passed that would
require that for every six liquor stores, there must be one dispensary. She noted that cities
wrote letters in opposition of the bill, and as a result, the bill died on the floor.

ADJOURNMENT

Motion was made by Johnson/Garnes to adjourn the meeting at 7:50 p.m. to the February 18,
2020 regular meeting. Motion carried 4-0.

-10-



Attest:

FEBRUARY 4, 2020 MINUTES
Page 11

Karen Dunham, City Clerk

Debra Garnes, Mayor

-11-



Crey OF

Rz;; De/[ P S — e e m O “
675 Wildwood Avenue DE LI._/

o

Rio Dell, CA 95562 —

(707) 764-3532
cityofriodell.ca.gov

February 18, 2020

TO: Rio Dell City Council

=}

FROM: Kyle Knopp, City Manager .~/

/

SUBJECT:  Approval of Resolution No. 1443-2020 Authorizing the Mayor to Sign Letters of
Support or Opposition to State and/or Federal Legislation as Recommended by
the League of California Cities on an Urgency Basis on Behalf of the City

Council

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL:

Approve Resolution No. 1443-2020; or

Take no action.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

This item was requested by Mayor Garnes who is also the City’s representative to the League of
California Cities.

The City of Rio Dell is a member of the League of California Cities who work together to
enhance individual knowledge and skills, exchange information, and combine resources so that
they may influence policy decisions that affect cities. The league evaluates thousands of
legislative proposals annually and comes to a determination ultimately of whether the League
will recommend supporting or opposing state and federal legislation on behalf of cities. Many
times state and federal legislation is proposed, acted upon or amended with little notice. The
league often sends requests to cities to act upon the legislation on an urgency basis, sometimes

with hours or just days to have a timely response.

The City Council of the City of Rio Dell has regularly scheduled meetings that occur twice per
month, occasionally resulting in three weeks of time between meetings. This makes responses to

requests from the League of California Cities occasionally untimely or ineffective.

Resolution No. 1443-2020 will authorize the Mayor to sign these letters as recommended by the
League of California Cities where a response is not possible in a timely manner. The Resolution
further requires the Mayor to submit these signed letters to the City Council at the next regularly
scheduled meeting of the Rio Dell City Council for ratification by the Council. ///

-12-




RESOLUTION NO. 1443-2020

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL AUTHORIZING
THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE LETTERS OF SUPPORT OR OPPOSITION ON BEHALF OF
THE CITY COUNCIL ON STATE AND/OR FEDERAL LEGISLATION ON AN URGENCY

BASIS AS RECOMMENDED BY THE LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES

WHEREAS, the City of Rio Dell is a member of the League of California Cities who work
together to enhance individual knowledge and skills, exchange information, and combine
resources so that they may influence policy decisions that affect cities; and,

WHEREAS, the league evaluates thousands of legislative proposals annually and comes to a
determination ultimately of whether the League will recommend supporting or opposing state

and federal legislation; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rio Dell has regularly scheduled meetings that occur
twice per month, occasionally resulting in three weeks of time between meetings; and,

WHEREAS, some legislation that the League takes a position on are items that the council
cannot take a timely positon on.

NOW, THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, ORDERED AND FOUND by the City
Council of the City of Rio Dell as follows:

1. The Mayor, on behalf of the City Council, is authorized to execute letters of support or
opposition on state and/or federal legislation as recommended by the League of
California Cities and on an urgency basis where it is not possible to bring the item before
a regularly scheduled meeting of the Rio Dell City Council in a timely manner.

2. When such letters of support or opposition are issued on matters of federal and/or state
legislation, said letter shall be submitted to the City Council by the Mayor for ratification

at the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Rio Dell, State of California, on
February 18, 2020, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

M
Page 1

Resolution No. 1443-2019

-18-



Debra Garnes, Mayor

ATTEST:

I, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify the
above and foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. 1443-2020 approved
and adopted by the City Council of the City of Rio Dell on February 18, 2020.

Karen Dunham, City Clerk

]
Page 2

Resolution No. 1443-2019

-14-



Rio Dell City Hall

675 Wildwood Avenue
Rio Dell, CA 95562
(707) 764-3532
cityofriodell.ca.gov

February 18, 2020

TO: Rio Dell City Council

FROM: Kyle Knopp, City Manager

SUBJECT:  Approval of Resolution 1444{;"2020 Related to Public Agency Pilot Solar Program

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL:

Approve Resolution No. 144-2020

Or, take no action.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

On December 4, 2019 the City Council received a presentation on a Solar Feasibility Study
completed by the Redwood Coast Energy Authority. The consensus of the council was to have
staff pursue the feasibility for solar projects at the Wastewater Treatment Plant and City Hall.

RCEA has requested the attached Resolution in order to continue this process. This is not a

commitment of funds or commitment to complete a project.

On May 6, 2003 the City Council authorized execution the RCEA Joint Powers Agreement
(JPA) via Resolution No. 842-2003 and the City of Rio Dell has been a member ever since.
RCEA was established to provide regional development and implementation of energy programs
that reduce demand, increase efficiency and advance the use of renewable resources for the

benefit of local residents, businesses and institutions.

RCEA has been authorized to implement a Public Agency Pilot Solar Program with the intended
purpose of offsetting electrical load at public facilities. The program is supported by net revenue
from the Community Choice Energy (CCE) program that Rio Dell joined via Ordinance No.
345-2016 on November 15, 2016. Because of these actions, Rio Dell (and other member

agencies) will be given a priority for assistance that we would not otherwise receive.

On April 3, 2018 the Council authorized staff to sign a letter of intent to participate in the Public
Agency Pilot Solar Program. City facilities have been reviewed for efficiency options and RCEA

has replaced lighting in city facilities to modern LED’s at no cost to the City.

The attached report was commissioned in order to explore two main solar options:

-15-




Wastewater Treatment Plant: Prior exploration of this project involved the demolition of the
old wastewater treatment system to create a “solar field.” However, that demolition has been
replaced by a project to recycle the old wastewater plant for use in pre-treating water system
backwash from the filtration process prior to the water being introduced into the WWTP. The
new solar concept involves placing a solar array directly above the WWTP itself, thereby
reducing algae growth at the plant and improving its performance and environmental regulatory
compliance — thereby accomplishing two important tasks with one project. The WWTP
consumes large amounts of electricity and energy enhancements would be important to
containing the cost of electricity and the potential implementation of an Ultraviolet disinfection

system which would improve regulatory compliance and staff safety.

City Hall Roof: The City Hall roof could be an ideal location for a relatively straight-forward
solar installation.

Attachments:
Solar Feasibility Study

I

-16-




RESOLUTION NO. 1444-2020

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL REQUESTING
TECHNICAL AND PROJECT ASSISTANCE TO SEEK FUNDING FOR ENERGY -
SAVING OR ENERGY GENERATION MEASURES WITH FURTHER AUTHORIZATION
FOR THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE ALL NECESARRY DOCUMENTS TO CARRY
OUT THE PRUPOSE OF THIS RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the Redwood Coast Energy Authority’s Public Agency Solar Program provides
technical assistance; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Rio Dell authorizes the Redwood Coast Energy Authority to apply for
technical assistance; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Rio Dell recognizes that the Redwood Coast Energy Authority has
limited funds available to provide technical assistance and that priority consideration will be
given to those Public Agencies that have a desire and willingness to seek funding to implement
feasible recommended energy efficiency and renewable energy generation measures.

NOW, THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, ORDERED AND FOUND by the City
Council of the City of Rio Dell as follows:

The City of Rio Dell is willing to seek funding to implement viable energy-saving or renewable
energy generation measures and therefore requests technical and project assistance to identify

such measures as may be economically feasible.

Be it also Resolved, that the City Manager is hereby authorized and empowered to execute all
necessary documents to implement and carry out the purposes of this resolution.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Rio Dell, State of California, on
February 18, 2020, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Debra Garnes, Mayor

w
Page 1

Resolution No. 1444-2020

-17-



ATTEST:

I, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify the
above and foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. 1444-2020 approved
and adopted by the City Council of the City of Rio Dell on February 18, 2020.

Karen Dunham, City Clerk

m
Page 2

Resolution No. 1444-2020

-18-



REDWOCOD COAST

EnergyAuthority

! Humboldt County * Arcata » Blue Lake » Eureka » Ferndale « Fortuna * Rie Dell « Trinidad - Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

Solar Feasibility Study

City of Rio Dell November 2019

Author: Public Agency Solar Program




1  Executive SUMmMary ......cccccvvviivinnivineneeecnn T SRS S A S S Y O RSOOSR AR S AR SRS SE 5
BN 111 4o Yo [¥ ot o o s WU O PP PSP F PP P PRSP RSOSSN 6
T Yot g Toll e T Yo Y - Y1V PP PP PSR TSPI I SISO RI BRI R 6
L 11 Y - | PP PP PP TP T R PP R R PRI 7
4.1  Efficiency Opportunities: LED Lighting Upgrade...........occiiimiinrmiinieninie s 7
4.2 Solar Photovoltaic (PV) Sit€ ANAIYSIS ....cuceverueremiiiiiiiriiiiiere et 7
4.3 Solar Photovoltaic (PV) SYStEM SIZE ....ccccourieiiiieiiiiiiieriiierse s s s bbb s 8
4.4 Solar Photovoltaic (PV) SYStem COSES.....ccuiiiiiiiiiiriitiiiinsie sttt 9
4.5 S0lar PV FIiNanCial ANAlYSis........cvveereeeruereneememriiimeienistsisiesteeesssssesnsss e ettt s s s s b s 9
LI VY= =Y G =T 140011 L0 2 = 1) PP PP PSPPI PP PPT TR T PO NP L 9
5.1  Energy Efficiency Opportunities - WWTP OPerations ........ccueeeecreeeniineinnniniiiniisiss s 11
5.2  Energy Efficiency Opportunities - WWTP LIghting ......cceoueieiminininiiniiiii i 11
5.3  Solar Photovoltaic (PV) Sit@ ANGIYSIS ......cccrvcieirieiiriiiiririnise et s 11
5.4  Solar Photovoltaic (PV) SYSTEM SIZ€ ...cc.cvereriiiiiiiiiiiiieteerie s s 13
5.5  Solar Photovoltaic (PV) SYSTEM COSt ....c.cevvereiiiiiiiiiiiiereiiti st 14
5.6 ULIIItY RALE ANGIYSIS cuocveeerieiirireeteiersseseeseienteeiresentoeetssbess s res st a s b s E bbb bR s 15
LT 11 e 113 =< PO P P PP PP T TR I IO TERO IR 15
6.1 N = A 1=y o - OO P S PP PP PRI PP 16
Appendix A A-6, E-19-S and E-19-R utility rates used for feasibility StUdy .......cccooovviiiiimn 17
Appendix B Assumptions and inputs used in RCEA’s solar PV system Sizing..........coovviniininnniinn. 19
Appendix C  Assumptions and inputs used in RCEA’s financial @analysis..........cccccooviiin 20



Table 1 Summary and comparison of Energy Conservation Measure options for the City of Rio Dell

Table 2 Detailed summary of the City of Rio Dell’s electric use by metered account. ........cocovieinnenicneninennn 6
Table 3 Summary of results of the LED lighting upgrade at Rio Dell City Hall..........cccooveiiiiiiinnncne 7
Table 4 Estimated costs for a 22.4 kW DC solar PV array at Rio Dell City Hall. .......ocooniiiniiiiniis 9
Table 5 Cost and benefit analysis of a 22.4 kW DC solar PV project option at Rio Dell City Hall............ccccovvnnnce. 9
Table 6 Estimated costs and potential savings from an LED lighting upgrade at Rio Dell's WWTP. ........cccccevencne. 11
Table 7 Summary of solar PV array options at Rio Dell's WWTP. ... 13
Table 8 Estimated costs for a 342 kW DC solar PV installation at Rio Dell's WWTP. ... 14
Table 9 Estimate of savings from switching to an E-19-R rate at Rio Dell's WWTP. .....c.ccoeveminiirnnnininnnnicnniennns 15
Table 10 Summary of energy conservation measures for the City of Rio Dell's City Hall and WWTP. ................... 16
Table 11 RCEA's and PG&E’s A-6 time-of-use electric rate schedule. ... 17
Table 12 RCEA's and PG&E’s E-19-S electric rate SChedule. ........cocvviiiiinnieniii e 17
Table 13 RCEA's and PG&E's E-19-R electric rate schedule...........ccccovivemiiiiiniiinicnre s 18
Table 14 Assumptions and inputs for PV system analysis for the City of Rio Dell. ..o, 19
Table 15 Assumptions and inputs for PV system analysis at Rio Dell's Wastewater Treatment Plant................... 19
Table 16 Assumptions and inputs for financial analysis of solar PV installation at City Hall. ............c.cccoeiiinn. 20
Table 17 Assumptions and inputs for financial analysis of solar PV installation at the WWTP. ..........cccovvinninnne. 20




Figure 1 Summary of electric charges at City of Rio Dell Sites. ....c.ccccoviiiviininiiiiiie e 6

Figure 2 Available roof area for solar PV installation at Rio Dell City Hall. .....c.cccoeviviiiiiiiiiniiiicreenecen 8
Figure 3 Monthly solar PV output vs electric use for a 22.4 kW DC solar array at Rio Dell City Hall. ........................ 8
Figure 4 Electric consumption in kWh by time-of-use period and maximum demand at Rio Dell's WWTP........... 10
Figure 5 Demand charges and kWh charges by time-of-use period at Rio Dell's WWTP. ......c.ccoceveeiiinnnnnnennnne 10
Figure 6 Parcel boundaries at Rio Dell Wastewater Treatment Plant..........ccccoueoiininininiin e, 11
Figure 7Potential installation areas for solar PV carport installation at Rio Dell's WWTP. ......ccccocvviiivniieiinnnene 12
Figure 8 Examples of carport structures for mounting solar panels that could be used at Rio Dells WWTP.......... 13

Figure 9 Estimated electric use and solar production at Rio Dell WWTP with a 342 kW DC solar installation. ..... 14

-22-—



1 Executive Summary

The City of Rio Dell is working with Redwood Coast Energy Authority’s (RCEA’s) Public Agency Solar Program
(PASP). As part of that work, RCEA performed an analysis of the energy consumption, efficiency opportunities,
and solar photovoltaic installation opportunities at two locations controlled by the City of Rio Dell: City Hall and
the Wastewater Treatment Facility. While both projects would provide economic and environmental benefits to
the City, the City Hall project option would provide the greatest economic benefits, with a simple payback
period of less than 10 years. Rio Dell worked with RCEA to complete an LED lighting upgrade that will reduce
electric use and costs at City Hall; City Hall could host a solar PV array that offsets the bulk of the remaining
electric use at the site. A 22.4 kW DC array installed at Rio Dell City Hall could provide the following benefits:

o Offset of 81% of the site’s annual electricity consumption
o Offset of 99% of the site’s annual electricity bill

e Asimple payback period of 9.6 years
e A Net Present Value of savings of almost $80,000 after loan re-payment
e Greenhouse gas abatement of 37 metric tons of CO, equivalent over the life of the project

The Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) could host a 342 kW DC solar installation; the project would require
greater initial capital investment and would require just under 17 years to payback the initial investment, largely
due to increased cost of installing carport canopy systems. The WWTP project could be paired with lighting
efficiency upgrades at the plant that would improve the payback period if the projects were funded under one
loan application. The WWTP project would benefit from changing from the E-19-S rate to the more solar friendly
E-19-R electric rate. A 342 kW DC solar installation at the WWTP combined with an LED lighting upgrade and the

E-19-R rate change could provide the following benefits:

o Offset of 71% of the site’s annual electricity consumption
o Offset of 68% of the site’s annual electricity bill

e Asimple payback period of 16.6 years
e A Net Present Value of savings of almost $450,000 after loan re-payment

Table 1 below shows a comparison of the project options analyzed in this report.

Greenhouse gas abatement of 644 metric tons of CO; equivalent over the life of the project

Table 1 Summary and comparison of Energy Conservation Measure options for the City of Rio Dell.

Ronf-Hclintad SolarArcay 22.4 $78,400 $0 $78,400 25,108 | $8,188 | 100% 9.6
on City Hall

Interior and Exterior

Lighting Upgrades to LEDs = $13,810 $2,803 $11,008 13,646 $2,403 2% 4.6
at WWTP

Roof-Mounted and

Carport-Mounted Solar 342 $1,475,000 S0 $1,475,000 442,460 $83,728 66% 17.6
Arrays at the WWTP

Rate Change from E-19-S to i %0 %0 %0 ) 42,299 2% i
E-19-R

Totals 364.4 $1,567,210 $2,803 $1,564,408 481,214 $96,619 71% 16.2

|
|
Sy




2 Introduction
RCEA began working with the City of Rio Dell as part of RCEA’s Public Agency Solar Program in May of 2018.

After an initial kick-off meeting with city staff, RCEA began its analysis of the energy consumption, efficiency
opportunities, and solar photovoltaic installation opportunities at two metered locations controlled by the City:

City Hall and the City’s Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP).

3 Electric Load Analysis
RCEA performed an electric load analysis of Rio Dell’s electric consumption using utility data from the previous

12 months of use covering the period from September 2018 to August 2019. Rio Dell receives electric service
from PG&E and is enrolled in RCEA’s Community Choice Aggregation program; City Hall is on an A-6 time-of-use
rate, the WWTP is on an E-19-S rate. RCEA’s and PG&E’s electric rates, demand charges and time-of-use periods
used throughout this analysis can be found in Appendix A of this document. Rio Dell’s electric charges are
concentrated at the Wastewater Treatment Plant (64% of total annual bill}, and at City Hall (4% of total annual
bill). Several smaller gas and electric accounts make up the remainder of the City’s annual gas and electric bills.
Table 2 below shows a summary of Rio Dell’s electric consumption.

Table 2 Detailed summary of the City of Ric Dell’s electric use by metered account.

O B

Site Name Address Rate Total Annual Total Percent Cost/kWh
Load (kWh) | Charges (S) | Charges (%) ($)
City Hall 675 Wildwood Ave | HA6 30,940 $8,199 4% $0.27
Wastewater Treatment Plant 475 Hilltop Drive E19S 643,559 $127,186 64% $0.20
All Other Gas and Electric Costs $62,631 32%
Totals 674,499 $198,016 100% $0.20

Figure 1 below shows a visual summary of Rio Dell’s annual electric bills across its nine metered locations.

City Hall, $8,199, 4%

All ©ther Gas and
Electric Costs,
S62,631,32%

Wastewater
Treatment Plant,
S127,186, 64%

B All Other Gas and Electric Costs

m City Hall W Wastewater Treatment Plant

Figure 1 Summary of electric charges at City of Rio Dell sites.




4 City Hall
Rio Dell’s City Hall is located at 675 Wildwood Avenue, Rio Dell CA, 95562. It is housed in a single-story building
that has east and west facing roof areas that could host solar photovoltaic (PV) arrays. The total annual electric
load for City Hall was 39,940 kWh, accounting for 4% of the electric load of all sites analyzed in this report; the
annual cost of electricity at City Hall during the 12 months analyzed in this report was $8,199.

4.1 Efficiency Opportunities: LED Lighting Upgrade

RCEA performed a lighting efficiency analysis at City Hall in August of 2018. The City of Rio Dell worked with
RCEA’s Energy Watch program to complete the lighting efficiency upgrade at City Hall later that same month.
The City of Rio Dell shoul